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The Morwell Historical Society News ......15th. August, 1975

This issue is merely a repeat of Volume 2, published in 1963, supplies
of which had become exhausted. Republication of Volume 2 has now given us a
reserve of 20 complete setd of the 13 volumes issued in yearly volumes from
1962 to 1974 inclusive. These sets will be kept in reserve for posterity.
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" I. T. Maddern,
Morwell, 15/8/7



) Over the last few years, we have been flghtmng a 1asmng battle
against rising costs, an&, in partlcular, the incessant sharp rlses
in postal charges. Since we, started in 1962, the postal rates have
risen by a thousand per cent. ‘

We began with ten issues a year, a menthly publicatzan from F@bruary
to Envember znciusivea Then, we were forced 1ﬂt9 quarterly productxans
- in February, May, August and November, and finally into two issues a

“yesr - in May and August. But this last blggest rzse 0f all in pogtal

rates son top of a very bmg increase last ye&r, is taa much altagether‘

There is a brxght side to th& plcture.,We are very much 1ndebted to
our weekly hxstorlcal artlcle in 1ts Fr&day WeekuEnd Raadlng 1asue.
Although journalistic his tory is a 11ttle different from.the nsual
text—book variety, it is stlll.very‘lmpbrtant ~-and it is read by a
vastly grea%er number af people. It cauld Well be that the newspaper
is provzdlng a better hlstary sarvuce, %han the “Newa” which we have
been straggllng to predune, these 1ast Tew years. Thank you, the
‘Latrobe Valley Expresa. i e : '

L m

%




The flrst ‘head~teacher of Commerclal Road Stateée School Morwell John
Irving, was 23 years old when: he took up that position, in’ Aprll 1879. He was
a son of Robert Irving, who once conducted a bakery busxness at Boclarra, and
after whom Irving Street in Boolarra is named. :

John's sister, Barbara Irvang, was the teacher at Hazelwood Ridge ‘
State School from 1880 to 1886. Then she married Mr, Norman Burnie. Their son,
Dr. Alexander Burnle, has a praotlce in Melbourne,and is attached to the Alfred
Hospital. - =

) Ancther smster, Christlna Irv1ng, a planrst “taught music at Morwell for
many years. In fact, the Irving family was a_very gifted -one, particularly in-
music, John Irving hlmself played the violin, and when brother and sister had
practice nights together, some of the local people would gather outside to
listen to an entertaining performance by the duettists. John Irving's son,
Reginald Irving of. Falrv1ew Street, Traralgon, still has his father's violin,
now well over 100 years olds =~ . .

In 1880, John Irving married Ina (Georglna) Grant of Yinnar. When the
Catholic School opened in Morwell in 1884, causing a big drop in enrolment at _
the State School, John Irving transferred to thé new school opening at Boolarra."
Accommodation troubles’ at Morwell (for the school residence was tiny and poor)
as well as family reasons,may have played. thelr part also in his appllcatlon
for transfer to Boolarra, -

John Irving was an’'excellent teacher. He could entertain an audience
with recitations as well as with his violin. He was a good horseman, and -he was
in charge of a small militia unit which he started at Morwell. At Boolarra, he
-won a Bronze Medal of the Royal Humane Society for his attempt to save the
life of a house»keeper whose clathes had caught alight from a fire. The house~
keeper died, and John Irving spent several weeks in hospltal recovering from
severe.burns.

He died of Bright's Disease in 1894 at the early age of 38, and lies
buried in the Hazelwood Cemetery. His wife and children returned to Yinnar for
a short time, and then Mrs., Irving opened Irving's Boarding House in Morwell in
order to make a living. Her place was on the hill in the vicinity of the present
Catholic Church. Neighbours were the Denaldson family on one side, and the
Dustings and the Rowells on the other, Mr. Reg Irving remembers that one of the
Donaldson firls, Grace Donaldson, aged 18 yearﬂ, was killed when thrown from
a bolting hcrse, New Year's Day 1881.

) ‘Mr, Reg Irving has an excellent,enlarge& photograph of his father, John
Irving - a handsome, 1ntelllgent-1ook1ng man, a pioneer teacher and a hlghly—
esteemedkc1tlzen of Morwell, ; «

2.‘y Cummerolal Road State School, No, 2136,

In the changes - and enlargement of the bulldlngs of the Commerc1al Road
otate ‘School, we can.trace five stages of development: - :

1, Temggrggg Premises. The room in Tarwmn Street, opposite the present site of
Coles! Store, in which the school opened, 3rd. April 1879, was owned by Henry
Breed of Traralgon, and was built as a temporary butcher's shop - to serve the
rallway construction-gang building the railway line in 1878, as a butcher's

shop - a branch of Breed's Traralgon business. It was small, 14 feet by 12 feet,
and could accommodate 25 to 30 children, whereas John Irving estimated the
number of children of school age. in the area to be somewhere between 80 and 100
‘chlldren. He had this to say about the premises:-
S "The room is well ventilated, as the upper part’ of the back wall is a
kind of trellis work, through which the rain pours in,in winter, -and through
which the sun shines through rather strongly in summex".

2. A Portable’ Class»Room. A portable Schoolwroom was set up beside the original
room in August, 1879, and a second was being considered, when the Board of
Advice protested and urged the construction of a permanent and proper school
on the selected site, further east along Commercial Road.

' 3¢ A Permanent School. The new school, 40 feet by 20 feet was erected by John
Nichols at a cost of" £308, and was occupled, 18th. August,1880.. One of the
portable rooms was converted into a residence for which the teacher paid rent

- of £9 a year. A ‘plan of the grounds at that time shows the 'school in the corner,
as at. present “though smaller, and not So close ta the fences, with the residence

- one chaln further distant east, and facing Commercial Road. At that time, a road
- the continuation of George Street, separated the grounds from the Church of
England block, where old St. Mary's Church was built in 1886, :




4, gggggg s In 1891=92 an addltlonal room was added to the school. By 1895,
the residence consisted of four rooms, but Thomas Ferguson, the- head-teacher,
had added “two of these at his own ‘experise, although he Was able ﬁc sell them to
the Department when he left- towards the end of 1895. '

. A Bric Bu11d1n°; In 1906 the old buildings were replaced by "a. handsomegnew .
brick building}' and the "shabby r931dence“,knawn locally as the "Eyesore" lﬂcked B
even shabbier by, comparison, The teacher in 1909, Mr, R. Dickson, would not: 1ive a
in it and. purchased hzs own plaee. In 1911 the r331dence was sold for £15 and t

removed.-; L

(lote 6. Further addltlons and chagges). About 1966 further rooms were built

parallel to Commercial Road. In 1973 the original Prick . rooms (or part of them)
were dﬁmalishad and re~built - as a store—room. It seems also that the main sectlon
of. brlck was constructed in the 1920%'s. : E : :

. § Charles Oxtobv Gllbert, 1822»1888=

Mr. C. 0. Gllbert wWas one’ of the flrst men to. establish a busmness in.

Morwell. This was late in 1878 or early in 1879. With his famlly he had arrived
in Melbourne in March 1878, and a few months .later he opened a. general store in
the village of. Horwell.
' ff There is in the p0556331on of the Gllbert family a pha%ograph of th&s
early. ‘store, the. site of which is now occupied by Sharpe's,in Commercial -Road.
The photograph shows a typlcal, low, early-colonial type of bulldlng w1th quite
a crowd -on the verandah, obviously gathered there for some partlcular reason,
such as to meet the train, or to collect the mall, or to have their photos taken,
or more 11kely after some speolal meeting or church service. Some of the early.
Church of England services were held in Gilbert's store bulldlng. The men,women
and children all look over-dressed, as was the fashlon in those days, seeming to
be encumbered by their clothes, A horse and a gig are at one side, and .a pack=-
horse at the other, and a sign on the building bears the words, ”Rallway Store,
Co 01 G’llbertt -

. The adjacent bulldlng, Whlch seems o be a contlnuatlon of the store,
buit which has no verandah, shows a man leaning against a doornpost, and a sign
'above the door reads "V, R. Post & Telegraph Offlee“. It has been said that the
first post—off;ce wag at the rallway station. If so, the one shown in the photo
would be the second, The third was on the north-west corner of Tarwin and George

Streets j the. fourth, built about 1896 was where the Commonwealth Bank now stands,
and our last one is the present one at the corner of Princes Highway and -Church
Street, built in 19 « This photograph must be a very early one, perhaps as
early as 1879, though more likely, about 1884, .
" The family belief that Mr, C, 0, Gilbert came to Morwell towards the

end of 1878 is born out by the records, For example, Nr, Gilbert's name does
not appear on four petltlon lists between November 1877 and July 1878 (asklng
for the establishment of a 3ehoal), but at the first land sale in January 1879,
he bought allotment 10 in Block 2, where he established his home and his store,
In the same month, 48/1/1879, he wrote a4 letter advocating that the preposed
new school should be estahllshed "in the village of Maryvale'" (that is Morwell)
and not a mile and. a half away on the Ridge, where the disused Maryvale Ridge
School was. The Commercial Road State School Register shows that Mr, Gilbert's
chlldren, Percy, Gerald and Harold, all enrolled at the new school, when it
opened 3rde April, 1879, and that the two older ones had prev1ausly attended»_‘
‘the Maryvale Ridge School

. The business closed when Mr, €, O, Gllbert died, i3/2/13§8, and his
sons took up farming. The Gilbert family have ‘all been devout members of the -
Church of England, Records of the family - baptisms, marriages and burials =
can be fcund in the registers of St, Mary's Church,. Leicester, England, Could
Horwell's Church of England have been named "Ste Mary's“ after this Lelcester
‘Church9 v

' Mrs Percy Astill Gllbert was ten yaars old when hls parenta braught
their family from Leicester to Australia in March, 1878, His father died ten
years later, just at the time the family was in the process of relinquishing
the general store in Morwell to take up farming at Yinnar' South, .

Mr, P. A, Gilbert eventually retired to live in Morwell, for the last
fifteen years of his life, He collapsed and died, 12th.December, 1951, while
fattend;ng a service at St. Mary's Church of England, Morwell,

' The obltuary notices which the family has kept give some interestlng‘
smdellghts on the story of Morwell's early days., Tor example, Mrs Gilbert had
been a champion horseman in his prime, and several times he rode the 100 mlles
to Melbourne, on harseback, in the one day.
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On the occasion of the opening of the newest section of the Morwell State
School (Commer0¢al Road) in 1949, he had. the honour. of being the senior old-boy

;ypreeﬁnt ‘having attehded the opening 6f thé school 70 years earlier.

One-of the Anglican churches closely comnected with the Gilbert family is
the’ Chumch of the Holy Imnocents at Yinnar South. This dellghtful little church,
bullt in 1895, still kept in good order and still used, must be one of the
sm311est churches in Vlctorla.,lt can accommodate only a congregation of about
20 people. ‘It is said that once, on the occasiion of a special, anniversary

@ service, a v181t1ng ch01r so filled the whole church that the congregatlon had

7 to sit outside.

Mr. P, A. 'Gllbert’s older brother, Mr. Arthur Gllbert, wrote the chapter

" on ‘the history of the Morwell Church for the book, "The Church of Our Fathers",

”whlch ‘deals with.the history of the Church of England in Gippsland.
© ' Another brother was Gerald Buckley Gilbert, a well-respected teacher in
the service of the Victorian Education Department. He began his teaching career
as the first pupil teacher at Morwell State School.
One interesting feature of ‘the story of..the Gilberts is the way they have
_handed down names occurring in the family history. "Astill".-was the maiden name

Y Mrs. .C. O. ‘Gilbert, the mother of Percy Astill Gilbert. (Members of the

Astill famlly have played county cricket for Lelcester) "Buckley" wag the maiden
"name of C. 0. Gilbert's mother, and hence, Gerald Buckley Gllbert was n&med after
. his paternal grandmother.
; Mr, Jack Gilbert's farm,"Brocklebank" at Ylnnar South, is named after
_ hlS mother, who, before her marriage to Mr. P. A. Gilbert, was Miss Irene
'Brocklebank, ‘a teacher at Yinnar South School. Another of their properties,
"Rothley", is named after a town in Lelcsstershlre, where C. 0. Gilbert married
Fanny Astlll 16/8/1859 No doubt. the unusual name of "0Oxtoby" also commemorates
soue person or .some place connected with the fam;ky. .

5.v?he Flrst Page of the School Reglster.

S The farst page. of the. reglster of the Commerclal Road State School lists
. the pupils of the first year of the school's history, while it was still housed
inthe temporary premises in Tarwin Street, in 1879. About 20 families are

':Arepresénted in the enrolment of the first 60 children to attend the school. The

Uflrst, 'or, No.l in the register, is Annie Henryg aged eight, daughter of Robert
Henry, carpenter of Morwell, and first owner of the’ block of land on whlch eur
Town Hall now stands. Other children from this famlly were Eargaret (13), ’
John (11), and. Jessie (7). Other families and their members enrolled were:

“Gilbert.... Percy (12), Gerald (9), and Harold (5), were the sons of C.0. Gllbert,

whose general store was_on thesite of Sharpe's drapery store today.. -

Donaldson...David (10) and Edith (6), the children of David Donaldson, another

store~keeper, who had the corner store where Faulkner's is now. . ;

Collyer....Bridget (14), Paul (7), and Jozmna (4) were the chlldren of John
Collyer, hotel-keeper.

0!'Flaherty.....Michael (8), Julia (6) and Edward (4) were the ohmldren of Roger

- O'Flaherty, cattle-dealer.

Martin.... Camilla (12), Hennah (10), Sarsh (8) and Thomas. (3) were the chlldren
of James Martin, boot-maker,

McGaskill...Sarah (10),. Angus (8), and Peter (5) ~the children of Donald
McGaskill, line repairer.

Jones. ......Martha (10), Jane (8), Annle (7), and Ellzabeth (5) were the
children of John B. Jones, liné ¥épairer.”

Keegan......Rosanna (12), Philip (10§ Anthony (6), and Thomas (5) were the
children of Philip Keegan, gate-keeper.

Purdue......Lily (7) and George (5}, ‘the children of Edward Purdue, gate-keeper.

Rob1nson....W1111am (11) and Thomas (9), sons of John Roblnson, line-repalrer.

" From the surround;ng dlstrlct, a number of farmers enrelled chlldren at
the Morwell State School. They were: -
Vary...... Bllen (16), Arthur (13), Alfred (11), and Alice (6), children of Samuel
Lindon....Isabella (13), Charles (12), Newton (5) -children of Charles. Lindon.
Gorman,...Mary (11), Margaret (9), Eliza (7), Thomas (6) - children of Roger.
Crinigan...Rosénna (9), Edward (8), Elizabeth (5) =.children of Edward Crinigan.
Pcrter.,‘.George (12), Margaret (10) "Robert (9) Alexander (6) Agnes (5) -

- children of Robert Porter. :

Alllss...,Ada (11), John. (9) - children of John AlllSS.“
Samuel,..Annie (95 Thomas - (7), children of Lewis Samuel.
ﬂollox....John (10), son of Laurence Molloy. .
Minchinton...Jane 14, child of Samson ltinchinton.
McGauran.....Susan, child of Bridget HcGauran, widow.



Page 4. o . . |
The Morwell HlStOI&G&l 8001etv News Vol. 2, 1963 wieessesssRepubl isheg in 1225

S Morwell people not represented in this first school reglster would be
the single people or young,married people’like John R;ntoull the blacksmith,
and Miss Zenna McCrorey, the nineteen-year old school-teacher who had been
conducting the Maryvale Rldge State School until it closed in May, 1879. The new
teacher of the new school, John Irving, who made the first entries in this first
Commereial Road State School fegister, was a single man, aged 23. There would also
be families, whose children were too young or too old to attend school.
b ‘ We can recognlze today, in this area, the names of some of the descendents
.of some . of these pioneers, such as the Varys, the Gilverts and the Porters, but
there could-be many others, who have descended through a female line, and are not
recognlzed because ‘of the change af name.

6o sy .. Insgecfors and Inspections._

Another source of information about the early days of Morwell and of the
Morwell State School -is the record of inspections of the school. The flrst name
+that occurs is that of James Holland, who reported on the Maryvale Rldge Schocl
. .in 1877, and who was concerned in the matter of choosing a site for the new -
school. Then followed Thomas R. Hepburn, 1879-1888, who has left us a rough plan
of the area, showing the holdings of the various families and their distances
from the school, William Hamilton, 1888, and Alfred Fussell, 1889,were in charge
of the ‘area for brief periods. Then followedﬁT W. Bothroyd, who made his
»1nterest1ng report in 1890 on the rapid growth of Morwell. :
S ~In 1903, the school was inspected by the Director of Education, Frank
Tate, who, in his own time, achieved world sﬁature as an educationist, and who
is still recognized as one of the greatest teachers and administrators to have
served Victoria. He was accompanied to Morwell by the Art Inspector, P. W.
Carew-Smythe. The district inspector at that time was John McOwen.

. The attendance figures at the times of inspection make interesting
reading. Here they are for the first ten years, 1879-1888 -- 60, 78, 75, 57, 46,
67, 80, 78 8l. Though we can see there is a gradual tendency to increase, offset
by lowgr flgurea 1882 -1884, probably due to the opening of the Catholic School,
it is impossible to make any valid conclusions on those figures alone, since, in
thcsa days, the attendance of children was decidedly irregular. For example, we
are told that the enrolment in 1881 was 110, whereas there were only 70 pupils
present on 1nspectlon day. No doubt, the state of the roads would keep some .
children away on wet days. Some of the children were too young - under four years
- of age. -~ to be expected to be regular attenders. Parents may have objected to
overcrowding which was so‘aommon‘tﬁen, and which was eertainly no encouragement
to attend. ~Worst of all, and most important of all,the chief enemy might have
been sickness, even epldemxcs of sickness, Communltles were not as healthy as_
they are today. Minor ailments seem to have been perennial, while occasional -
epidemics of typhoid and dlphtherla swept through- an area taklng an aupalllng
toll of young lives.

It is a pity that, in the report of these 1nspect10ns, the t&achers are
. seldom named. However, in the report of 1888 by Inspector Hamilton, we learn ‘that
there were four teachers at work in one room ~ the Head Teacher, Thomas Ferguson;
an assistant, Miss E. C. McViéar, another unnamed, and flnally,'the pupil teacher,
Gerald Buckley Gllbert who had been enrolled as a pup11 in the school‘s flrst
year, 1879, : o

. .. Hotels ana Houses.

) _ The flrst settlers in this area, as in other areas of Austral&a, llved
under the most prlmltlve condltlons, not far removed from the standard of the
black man whose place they were taking. There was no dressed timber for building,
no galvanized iron, or tiles, for roofs, no glass for windows, and no tanks for
-~ water, The first homes; therefore, consisted of the barest essantlals “for a-
shelter - four walls of vertical slabs, not always weatheruprocf, $upporting a
bark roof. The first hotels and schools were of the same pattern.

- ' ‘When Mrs. Perry, accompanied her husband, Bishop Perry, on & diocesan
tour of Gippsland in 1849, she :gave this description of the inn in which they
spent the night at Moe: "Besides the amazing gaps between the slabs, the door of
the room, which was also the door of the house, was about a foot too short both
top and bottom. Our bedroom was a very narrow skillion with a black, earthﬂfloer,
all hills and dales, which stuck to our feet and dirtied the hem of my erSSes.
The window was a square hole sawn in one of the slabs."
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We get a similar plcture from Pev. Francis Hales, who stayed at
Fitchett's "Woolpack Inn" at Flooding Creek (Sale) in 1848. He wrote:
"This 1nn is a most wretched one, built . of bark, lined with calico and rugs.
The room appropriated to the stockmen was next to the one I slept in, -and when
they went to bed at 9.30 p.m., their language was so bad and so ea31ly heard,
that T removed to anothér room, yet still thelr awful language was quite
distinet till they fell asleep".

lLater, buildings of wattle and daub could have been more comfortable,
because they gave more privacy, with mud covering the crevices. Our name for our
wattle tree comes from the wattle and daub method of building. The real name for
the wattle tree is "mimosa", but the process of interlacing small branches and
twigs to form a frame on whlch mud would stick and set, was called "watling",
and the sticks themuelves were ‘called "wattles". The small nimosa trees provided
excellent wattle and ceme to be called "wattling-trees", or simply,wattlesy -

There were three well-defined stages in the building of homes by the
squatters (and selectors). The first home was a temporary one consisting of a
tent or a small, slab hut, in which a pioneering man could shelter. The second
was a more comfortable, though modest home, fitter for a man w1th a wife and a
family. If things went well, and the squatter became very wealthy, like the -
Wilsons of the Wimmera, or the Dockers of Wangaratta, or the Crookes: of Holey
Plains, a much more pretentious place was built, like Longerenong Homestaead,
or Bontharambo, or the Holey Plains Homestead, often double-storied, with slate
roofs; stone or tiled floors, wide stalrcases, many w1ndows, spacious rooms,
and. separate quarters for the servants. -

8. .. The Homes of the Settleru.‘

. . The squatters were wealthy men and .soon had comnfortable, and even
’luxurlous homes, While travellers through Gippsland,in the early days, might
write dn . .derogatory fashion of the inns and shanties where they stayed ‘over-
night, they could mention favourably some of the private homes, such as Mr.
James Davis' brick house at Woodside, the "best house in Glppsland", and the_
"comfortable homestead" of the Bennetts of Hazelwood Station. .

' The character of the country districts of Victoria changed cempletely
after 1871, when the leased land of the squatters was thrown open for purchase a
and settlement by small farmers, Most of the farmers that occupied these 320
acre selections (and sore times much smaller selectlons) were in poor circum—
stances, although there would be some exceptions, such as relatives of the
squatters,. and the squatters themselves, some of whom managed to acqulre by
ovnership much of the land they previously held on lease.

Steele Rudd in his stories,"On Our Selection", descrzbes the poverty of
the llfe of . many of these thousands of selecting famllles. He beglns hlS storles
with a description of a selector's home:

"Dad didn't travel up with us; he had gone some months before, to put up
the house and dig the water-hole. It was a slabbed house, with a shingled roof,
and space enough for two rooms, but the partition wasn't up. The floor was earth
but Dad had a mixture of sand and fresh cow-dung with which he used t0 keep it
level, About once every month he would put it on, and everyone-had to keep out-
side that day till it was dry. There were no locks on- the doors. Pegs were put’
in to keep them fast at night, and the slabs were not very 'close together, for »
we ‘could easily see anybody coming on horseback, by looking through them. Joe
and I used to play at counting the-stars through the cracks in the roof™,

It took years for most of these people to achieve a modicum of comfort
in their homes. After a time, the walls were lined with hessian covered with
wall-paper. lMore rooms were added; the bark or shingle roofs were replaced by
iron, and the water from'the roof was run into tanks for the domestic water
‘supply. The lack of a water retiecdlation system retarded the raising of the_*
living standard, the addition of a bathroom, greater personal and general clean—
liness, and less sickness. It was not untll 1915 +that Mormell achleved a town
water supply. N

" Until a copious supply of water is guaranteed, there can be no hyglenlc
service such as sewerage, nor such comfort as a bath-room and a hot-water
service. The people of the pioneering- days, and. for.two or three generations
after, for the most part, lived in houses without bath-rooms. In the best familias
the requ;rements of cleanliness were served by a bath in a tub,  once a week -
Saturday night. The best bedroom,or guest room, might have a wash-stand, with
wash=-jug and basin, but the daily washing of hands and face would take place in
dish convenlent to the tankstand., The kitchen was often separate from the house,
perhap» as a precautlcn against the total loss of the hame by fire.
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An “Annlversa 18/%3/196%,

Thls series of artlcles on "Barly MorwélI" began exactly one year ago,
on lMonday, 12th March, 1962, .and this is the 50th article in the series.»

(Then follows a list of corrections of errors made in Articles No. 3, No. 29,
No.30 and No. 45, but since these corrections have already been made in our
reprint of Volume l (May,l975) “there is no p01nt in repeating them agaln.)

10. Houses of Old Morwell.ﬂ25[§(l§6§2

‘ ‘One of Morwell's oldest houses has just been demolished, It was the old
Rlntoull home at 3% George Street, situated behind the first blacksmith's shop,
and built about 1879, when John Rintoull, the blacksmith, married Zenna
MeCrorey, the school-teacher., This small, four-roomed house was enlarged from
time to time, and remained in the possession of the Rintoull family for the
whole of its 83 years of existence, the last occupant being Miss Mlnna
(Wilhelmina) Rintoull.

“ Commercial Road, or that section of it between Hazelwood Road and
Tarwin Street, together with George Street, immediately behind it, were the
first residential and commercial streets of the township. Generally, a trader
who established his shop in Commercial Road would have his home in the same’
building, or else in a separate ‘house behind it and facing George Street.

. -There are two other very old houses in George Street, on the opposite -
side from Rintoull's. One belonged to Jack Westley, and. his daughter still 11ves
there; the other was occupied by John Lowe, a wheelwright employed by John
Rintoull,

The main road to Traralgon in those days was the contlnuatlon of
Commercial Road as far as the Ridge, where the road crossed to the other side of
the railway line by means of a wooden bridge, which was burnt down in the big
bush-fire of 1944, The town tended to straggle along this road (Commer01a1 Road)
and some of the older houses of the town are found in this part.

- In 1897, the house furthest east along this road was that of the Rowell
famlly, and Misses K. and D. Rowell live there to this day. The House next door
was occupied by Mr. Dusting, a saddler. This house became something of a
derelict after the Dustings left Morwell, and,one night, when two men: were =~
camped there, the place was destroyed by fire, and the two men were burnt to-
death,

Irving's boardlng house was on the corner now occupled by the Sacred
Heart School, one of the boarders in 1897 being an early rector of the'Church of
England, Rev. Frewin. On the opposite corner (across White Street) was the
residence of the store-keeper, David Donaldson. After that came the Catholic
Presbytery, which had been built in 1895, when the Church was still at the old
site in George Street. The present Church was built in 1902. (Further comment -
The 1902 Church was demolished in 1970, and replaced by a more substantial
building to suit the needs of a growing congregation).

' A 1little closer to the township centre was the first Morwell Hospital
conducted by Miss Townshend in a private residence (258 Commercial Road) at the
1nst1gat10n of Dr. Mclean. The next Louse was occupied by Dick Date, the L
blacksmith, and then came the residence of Mr. Tatterson, the dentist. Flnally,
there was Tim Kennedy's plece on the corner, 0r1g1nally built for Miss Nichol,
one. of the teachers at Gommerc1al Road School.

1. Houses of Old Morwell (COntlnued)

Cammercxal Read is the oldest street in Morwell. It is there, and in
George Street that. the first buildings - shops, hotels and houses, were erecteed.
Tarwin Street must have been-a very close second; or an equal first, because
Breed's butcher's shop, which was also the first temporary home of the Morwell
School, was in existence early in 1879. It was probably built in 1877, as the -
butcher's shop for the railway gangers building the line and railway station.
Green's drapery store, with a residence beside it was built in Tarwin Street,
perhaps as early as 1879, In those days, Tarwin Street was not cut off by the
Morwell S.E.C. Brown Coal Project, but carried right on into the country. The
two Misses Tonner, who conducted a prlvate school (with boarders) in the
1880's and 1890's, had their home and school in Tarwin Street. One of the
Misses Tonner was the organist for the Church of England.

Hazelwood Road was another important branch road. As its name 1mplles, lt
was the way out to Hazelwood, and there were houses along this road,and in the ,
side streets leading to it. Some of the old houses of Morwell still have under=
ground tanks, the standard means,in those days, of securing a household water
SUDD1Va
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- Off Hazelwood Road, in Ann Street (named after Ann Keegan) lived
- -another privatenschool teacher of the 1890'8, a MlSS King, whose sister was the
post-mistress.’

"~ In those days, an allotment gtretched from one street to the next, so,
instead of having two houses, back to back, facing parallel streets, each
allotment had only one house with a very long back yard. This, together with
vacant allotments, gave the township a pleasant spaciousness, or, as the more
city-minded of us would think, a very scattered appearance.

Another subsidiary road led over the railway bridge at the western end
into Jane Street and out to the 0ld Coach Road, to Morwell West (or Morwell
Brldge),,and to the Latrobe River., One of Morwell's best-known,old homes is the
old brick place in Jane Street, where lMr. J, B. Hoyle lived. There is a picture
.of this house in the Cyclopedia of Victoria, published 1905. This house was
built for an Englishman named Cooper, who was engaged to a local girl. The parents
of the girl did not look favourably upon the match; the engagement was broken
off; and Cooper returned to England. The house was bought by a Mr. Robertson,

a journalist on the staff of the "Morwell and Yinnar Gazette, but he suffered
from bad health, and, on his death 7/7/1897, the property was acquired by

o MI'. Jo B HOyleo

' ‘ Other houses on the north side of the llne, and not mentioned in
previous. articles, were the residence of Mr. Symons, a builder, in Buckley Street;
the home of a family named Collins, who lived where Collins Street School is now;
the house of Mr, Smith, who had an orchard property where the present Methodist
Church now stands; and the house of HMr. Holloway, a boot repairer, who had the
most easterly house in Princes Highway (that is, beyond Mr. Smith's orchard).

12. NMoe and the lloe Swamp.

The early explorers and settlers who tried to find a way from Melbourne
to Gippsland were baulked, not only by the rugged nature of some of the country,
and the ‘density of the scrub, but also by the water and mud of the morasses. The
Koo-wee-rup Swamp ‘was a barrier to anyone attempting to reach South Gippsland,
and the Moe Swamp presented equal difficulties in the more northerly section.

For example, in 1843, J. C. Tyers, who had been appointed Crown Lands Commission-
er for Gippslend, made three unsuccessful attempts.to travel overland from -
Melbourne to Port Albert, and finally travelled by ship, landing at Port Albert
in January, 1844. We do not appreciate now how wet and sodden the low-lying

areas were, but there are clear indications in the story of Gippsland, that such
conditions had a considerable bearing on the comparatively slow development of
the area. The roads tended to follow the ridges and the high land. For example,
Surveyor McDonald, in 1862, found a new track to Melbourne, by following the
ridges extending to the south of Moe. It was a good winter track since it avoided
the mud patches and the swamps, but it could not be used for cattle because of
this very reason - the lack of drinking water for the herds. Parts of McDonald's
track are still used today.

Some of the descendents of the early settlers wonder why their forebears
selected the rocky land of the hills instead of the fertile. valleys. It has been
modern drainage methods that have opened up the richer, low-lying land for
settlement. '
-The Moe Swamp contlnued to be a trouble spot for more than 60 years after
the first settlers arrived. The Cyclopedia of Victoria, published in 1905. gives
a good description of the Moe Swamp and the floods that caused so much damage.
The Moe Swamp extended for ten miles from Trafalgar to lloe. By 1905, the Govern-
ment had already spent 80,000 pounds on a reclamation scheme, which had been only
partially successful. In 1900, flood waters rose to the level of the tops of
some houses, and herds of cattle and flocks of sheep were drowned. There was a -
similar disaster in 1903, when strong currents of water simply swept the cattle
away. When the area was drained, some of the land fetched 20 pounds an acre.

The writer of the article in the Cyclopedia predicted a prosperous
future for Moe, based on a thriving dairying industry, but, at the same time, he
complained of the shocking state of the roads, which were almost impassable in
winter. This applied particularly to the main road from Moe to Trafalgar, which
ran close to the swamp, and parallel to the main draln. The population of loe in
1905 was given as 400.

Henry Scott was the first squatter to occupy the loe area, and it was at
his inn that Bishop and Mrs. Perry stayed one night in 1849, on their way into
Gippsland, No-one seems to know how lMoe .received its name or why that particular

spelling was adopted. Mrs. Perry spelt it "Mowie", and Rev. Hales (1848) spelt it
"Mouay". The article in the Cyclopedia of 1905 mentioned only one business place,
a general store,conducted by Mr. A. J. McKanZLe, who bought it from the original
owner, Mr, A, Marshall, : oo
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oo e T 13, The Haunted Hills. »

The various stories of how the Haunted Hills received their name have
one thing in common, - that cattle are, or were, afraid.to stay in the area. The
two stories most commonly heard are neither very interesting nor convincing. -
Aoco%dlng to" one, subterranean hollows in the hills magnify the -hoofbeats of the
cattle and frightén them; the second.merely affirms that foér some unknown and
mysterloug reason, cattle will not stay in the hills at -night. :

" The "Cyclopedia of Vlctorla" ,1905, has a more plausible account. It
appearu that an early drover:was attempting to drive his cattle down a-'steep
 1ncl1ne, When the mob sud&enly gtampeded, and fled terror-strickeéen into the
“nelghborlng scrub, ‘where they immediately disappeared, and were never seen again.
The drover maintained that an unearthly noise rising from the ground accompanied
the bewmtchlng of his cattle, and so SCdrﬁd was he, that he could never again be
1nduced to ‘attempt that route.
© Later drovers declared that,at thlo ‘same spot, their cattle became
unmanageable, some were. always lost, and from the opposite slope came the ghostly
tramp of cattle - the cattle lost by the first drover. But when the’ opposite' slope
was examined, no evidence of cattle having been there could be found,
L - The details given allow us_to reconstruct the story and explain the
““mygterye The "stampede" of the cattle was probably due to the steepness of theé
“slope, forclng the cattle into a run; the ghostly tramp from the other slde of
the valley was merely an echo. . i~
‘ Instead of the qulet progress of a herd along a road, there iwas- ‘the
thunder of flylng hoofs, increased.in volume-as the opposite slope threw back its
echoes, Possibly the cattle were scared - by the steepness of the slope, On the
other hand, they may simply have veered off the road.to.check their headlong
descent, and 80 dlsappeared 1nto the thlck scruba. Later drovers heard the echoes
of their own.animals. ‘ :

People were more credulmus in those days, In ‘any oase, we all llke a
good story, and support it with imagination: if not wmth facts. Alcohol may . have
had some part in the story because drovers were amongst the ‘hardest drinkers in
a hard-drinking age. Perhaps the flrst drover had stayed ‘overlong at the Morwell
Bridge Inn before starting out on his Journey ‘over the. hllls to Moe. A lonely, .
superstitious man, in the eerie stillness of the Australian bush, confronted -
suddenly with the unexpected and what seemedxmmterlous would.not be likely to
stay, investigate, and find out what had happened. He would return to the comfort,
the company,end the solace of the inn. What better explanatlon for the abandon-
ment of the’ cattle than that they had "mysteriously disappeared.. The cattle may,
or may not have been afraid, but the man certainly was. The name: "Haunted Hills"
was therefore applied by a superstitious drover, badly scared by his own '
Alnterpretatlon of normal and natural occurrences.

14eeeseoaCoale

, It was known falrly early in the story of Glpp land. that there were
depesmta of coal, vhich éould be valuable, in the area. For example, in a survey
map of the Parish of Morwell, drawn by George Thomas Jones, in March 1874,
strip of land, three chains wide is shown, stretching to the south and marked as
«reserved -for a propossd tramway to'the Excelsior Coal Mine, ‘somewhere in the
Hazelwood area. (However, this might have been part cf a later survey, super=
imposed on the earlier map 6f 1874).

\ Henry Godridge of Morwell is credited with dlscoverlng the first ,
~substdnt1a1 coal bed in the Morwell area. After years. of prospectlng in his spare
time, he found coal,reasonably near the surface,’ on the north bank of the Latrobe
River, about' six miles north-west of the townshlp - or, 1n the reglon of what we
know now as Yallowrn North. o

Within a few years, there were at least four dlstlnct mlnlng concerns,
operatlng or attempting to operaﬁe, not countlng the Excelsior Mine already
mentioned. There may have been other ventures, but the follow1ng four are glven
in the Cyclopedla of Victoria: -

1. Godrifige's Mine to operate which a Melbourne Syndlcdte was formed Before much
could be done, 1t ‘was abandoned in favour of the second.. - ,
2. The Great Morwell Brown Coal Company Mine, more generally known as the Open Cut
© Mine, which was close 1o Godridge's.at Yallourn North, and which was found by
William Tulloch. After initial success, th@ company ran 1nto dlfflcultles
. and work stopped in 1899. , .
%, The Great Gippsland Company Coal Hlne whlch Was 1n-the same ‘area as the other
~ two, but on the other side of the loop line, and on land leased by DriL.L.
- Smith of Melbourne and Morwell. It was on low-lying land,. and the -sodden -
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nature of the soll made o@exatxng cendltlons dlffaeult.

M3 on 1and owned by Mro Joseph Budkley. It was very close to
the tcwnshlp,’belng approx1mately where the Ambulance Station is now. At this’
,poxnt ;dlamond drlll provided by the Mines Department bored down 1,000 feet
and_ showed over 800 feet of coal. The mine was leased by Nr.. Buckley to an
.Englgsh .company Whlch ceased operations about 1892, but oentlnued to hold the

,flease for several years after that,

o 'From 1900 onwards, therefare, although it was known that there were vast
quantlt;es of coal at Morwell, there was no mining done until the State
Electricity Commission was establlshed in March 1919. The Commission began its
work af Yallourn, and. it was not until after the Second World War that.coal was
mlned(ggaln at Morwell. . .

oo In the 1920*8, the State Electrlclty Commlsglon serlously aon31dered
moving the. whole townsh;p of Morwell, in order to mine the very valuable coal
deposits beneath it, but finally, the expense involved was considered too. high.
The Commission is now sorry that the move was not made then. To the east of
Morwell, between Morwell and Traralgon, there is very little coal of any value,
and no doubt, ﬁhe growth of the town will be in that dlrectlon. '

%

_"5 The open Cut Mine and William Tulloch, 3.843-1912 .

i “Henry Godridge conducted the hotel at Morwell Bridge, and discovered
coal on the north bank of the Latrobe River at Yallourn North. Then, about ten
chains ‘from Godridgets mine, Williem Tulloch found a more important dep031t of
browh ¢oal,’ ‘because it was more accessible, Sinceé this coal occurred convenlently
~ in the side of-a steep hill, it could be worked quite ea311y with horizontal
shafts at ground level - or by means of an open cut. When the earth was removed
from the side of the hill, a face of coal sixty feet'high was ‘revealed.

SR Tulloch took a lease of the land and the Great Morwell Brown Coal Co.
was formed to exploit the deposit. The Company built a loop line, b mlles long,
- to connect the mine to +the ‘main Gippsland railway line, and also a tram-line up
the hill to take away the overburden soil. The Government of Victoria agreed to
subsidize the building of the loop line to ‘the extent of 5,000 pounds, if the
Company produced briquettes. Loose ¢oal was ralled to Melbourne, and, for a tlme,
the Company prospered.

Then trouble came from various directions. Tulloch advised the Company
to import briquetting machinery from Germany, but. unfortunately, this advice was
not taken. The Otis Elevator Company sent their representaﬁlve to Germany to
obtain plan&, ‘and then built the machinery here, but it proved unsuitable..

A fire destroyed the buildings of the mine. A second attempt to make .a satis-
.- factory briquetting plant failed. The Company had contracted heavy expenses in -
attempting to make brlque%tes, and yet had failed to qualify for the 5,000 pounds
subsidy. Finally, the opening of black coal mines at Outtrim in the Korumburra -.
area ended any demand for brown coal. The’ Compsany ceased operations in 1899, and
went into liquidation.: in 1902, After some lltlgatlon, Tulloch retalned the lease
of the area, but relinquished it later, ’

William Tulloch was an active oltlzen of Morwell. He was born in the .
Orkney Islands, north of Scctland rand canme. to Australla as a child, in 1851,
with his parents.

. - He went to school at St. Mark!s School, Fltzroy, served his apprentloe~
ship as a carpenter, and éarried out contracts in Melbourne, the Goulburn -
- Valley and in Gippsland. He ‘came  to live in Morwell in 1880, and was the con-
tractor for the bulldlng of both the early blg hotels of Morwell - Murdoch'
Hotel, and McKay's Club Hotel.® - ’ .

2 “About 1894, he gave up the’ bulldlng trade and concentrated on his
nany- other interests — a fruit and vegetable mart next to- where the Post Offlce 1
is now (the eastern side), a news-agency, a hairdresser's &nd an un&ertaker s
business. It was a kind of a family &ompany, w1th one son runnlng the news—
agency, and another the hairdresser's. -

In 1870, he had married a Miss Morrow Of Melbourne, and their family
consisted of four sons -~ Bob, Jim, ‘Sam, and Jack ~and one daughter, Christina.
The Tulloch home was at the north~east ‘corner of the Hazelwood Road and George -
Street intersection; now owned by Les'HareQ‘ The glass panel ‘above the front
door still bears the name "Orkney" - a remlnder of the. 1sl&nds from whlch the
Tulloch famlly came. - - - =

Further Comment,1975. Mr. David Tulloch, Editor of the "Gippsland Times",
Sale, Victoria, 3850, is a great-grandson of William Tulloch, 1849~l9l9.
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16, Archibeld Shew's Journal.
One of the oldest and most interesting families of Morwell is the Shaw

family, represented by Mr., Donald Shaw of 77 Hoyle Street, Morwell. His grand=
father, Archibald Shaw, was born at "The Leob", near Bunesson, in the Isle of
Mull, Scotland. Archibald Shaw married Ann McDonald, also of Mull, in 1828, and
they, with their six children - Sally, Donald, Neil, Coll, John and Jessie =
emigrated to South Australia, 1850-51, and eventually took up land at Hazelwood.

Archibald Shaw kept a day by day diary during his voyage out. First, the
family travelled from Mull to Glasgow by steamer, then from Glasgow to Edlnburgh
by train,. from Edinburgh to London by steamer, and finally, the long trip from
London to Port Adelaide, on board the sailing ship, the "Ascendent".

o When the final complement of emigrants had been taken on board at
Plymouth, to bring the total to 131 passengers, the ship left that port on
Thursday, 3rd. October 1850, and arrived at Port Adelaide on Wednesday, 15th.
January 1851, after a voyage of 104 days, without touching at any intervening

.port.j‘ The non-stop type of voyage must have been the regular thing in those

days, but it must have entailed carrying large supplles, with the possibility of
short rations, perhaps for the whole Jjourney., Indeed, in this instance, the
passengers were glad to catch buckets of water during tropical downpours, for
washing purposes, and to replenish drinking casts, Some very necessary medical
supplies were exhausted by early in December,

Thirteen people died during the voyage - elght children, four women, and
one man.

; Generally, the diary is concerned mainly w1th entries deallng with the
force and direction of the wind, the course of the ship, and the speed which
varled from one period of dead calm,to 11% knots at the best of times} and an
overall average of about 5% knots was achieved. There were several periods of
rough weather and high seas, the worst part of the voyage being the passage
through the Australian Bight, an experience which is verified by most travellers
today, despite our bigger ships and faster travel.

- _The Shaw family was related to the Macquarie family, who were also natives
of Mull and .of whom the most famous member was Lachlan Macquarie, Governor of
Australla (New South Wales) 1809-1821. One of the Governor's nephews, Murdoch
Macquarie, lived with the Shaw family at "Otterburn', Hazelwood, and when he dled
‘in 1904, he was buried in the Shaw family grave in Hazelwood Cemetery.

17. The Swiss Family, Nadenbousch. R L

There was some Swiss migration to Australia as early as 1840, and this
may have been due in part at least to Charles Joseph La Trobe, Superintendent of
the Port Phillip District, 1839-1851, and Lieutenant-Governor of Victoria, 1851-54.
Although La Trobe was Engllsh born, he was of foreign descent. He had travelled
widely in Burope and both his first and his second wives were Swiss ladies. His
first wife was Sophie de Mont Mollin, and she died in 1854. It is significant
that. viticulture, an important Swiss agrlcultural industry, Was established in
the Geelong area, a year after La Trobe assumed office.

The majority of the Swiss migrants who arrived in Victoria after that
time started their career here by working in the vinyards, Some may have come
out at their own expense; it is possible that others were recruited and brought
out so that their expert knowledge could be used. in theivinyards of Victoria.

Alphcnse Nadenbousch,1843=1925, arrived in Victoria in 1861 at the.age
of eighteen, and worked for over ten yedra at Mr. Dardell's v1nyard, at Batesford,
near Geelong.

As early as 1865, he v131ted the Morwell area, prospectlng for a farm,
and camped for one night under a gum tree about where Faulkner's store is now,
but it was not till 1873 that he had the opportunity - of selecting,at Hazelwood,

a prOperty which is still owned by the family. He was followed by his son, Ern
Nadenbousch, who now lives in Hazelwood Road, Morwell.

Alphonse Nadenbousch married Bertha Deppeler, a member of another Sw1ss
famlly, at Sale in 1873, the year he took up land at Hazelwood. .

Switzerland is a country in which three different languages are spoken -
French, German, and Italian. Alphonse Nadenbousch came from the French-speaking
division as can be seen from his passport, issued to. him, 12/11/1861, in which,.
"Le Consell d'Etat de la Republique et Canton. de Neuchatel, invite les Autorités
civiles et militaires a 1alsser passer librement Citoyen Alphanse Jules Francois
Nadenbousch, domicilie’ & Peseux, allant en Australie par la France at 1'Allemagnel
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.. ._The Deppelers,. on the other hand, came from the- German=-speaking area.
An obltuary card issued in 1882 for Eligabetha Deppeler ( probably Bertha's
paternal grandmother) reads: "In tiefen Schmerze theilen wir Ihnen wit, dass
Elisabetha Deppeler, geb. Rudolph von Degerfelden in Ottenbach, in 1hrem
71 Lebensjahre, vershieden ist".

: The Deppelers also began thelr lives in Australia in the vinyards of

- Batesford. No doubt it was because Bertha and her:husband Alphonse had ventured
upon an independent life at Morwell, that her family came also to this area, ten
years 1ater, and bou ght their farm at Middle Creek, Yinnar South.

18. John Barton Hovle, 1860-1921.
John Barton Hoyle, -1860~1921, the son of Thomas Hoyle and Marion Hoyle

-iv(nee ‘Barton) was born at Beechworth, Victoria, where his father was a coach—

driver for Cobb and Co. At Beechworth the boy received his education at the
local .grammar school, which was attended at the same time by a pupil, five years
older, who was destined to become famous in the political world -Sir Isaac

. Isaacs, 1855-1948, the first Australian~born Governor-~General of Australia.

v Beechworth was in the Kelly Gang country, end it was near there, in 1880,
. when J. B. Hoyle was a young man of 20; employed as a coach-builder by Cobb & Co,
that the Kellys murdered the informer, Aaron Sherritt: J. B. Hoyle used to tell
his family that he and two companions had been threatened by the Keilys during

a chance encounter, just before Sherritt met his deaths

Although John Hoyle had served his apprenticeship as a ecoach-builder,
his natural propensity was towards office and secretarial work. He lived at
YMooroopna for about six years before coming to Morwell in 1890, where he set

“himself up in business as a valuator, and as a lénd and commission agent, with
an office-in-Commereial Road, next to Brown's chemist shop (now Milner‘s).

‘The house where the Hoyle family lived from 1897 onwards can still be
_seen in Jane Street. It is the old, brick house on the east side of the”street,

two doors down from the Princes Highway, and still looks, from the outside,very
much the same as it. was pictured in the "Cyclopedia of Vlctorla",l905. This
_picture shows Mr. and Mrs Hoyle, and their daughter Rose, standlng on the foot-
path,outside their home. .-

Mr. Hoyle was active in many. of the township's affairs, and was the
secretary for a number of organizations, the most important of which w